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Traugtees' Report

The trastees present their smmin] seport togethsr with the fimoncial statements and auditor’s report of flve: chariinble
company for the year to 31 August 2020, The sl report scrves the purposes of both & trustees' report, and a
dircctors® repart under company law.

The trust currently operates an academy for pupils of different ohikities bebwean the ages of 4 to 11 years, serving
a vabelunent atea in Swindon, with the conphasis on matntaining fhe Academy's Catholicity. Tehas & pupil capsicity
of 452 gnd had a roll of 419 in the schoo! ceasi o 8% Junuary 2020,

Struetnre Governanee and Management

Constitotion
Tlie Azadeiy i34 company limited by gumrantee and on exempt charity, The Charituble Ctmnpamﬂ Memarspdum
and Articles of Association ate e pricery governing documents of the Academy,

'[‘he 'l‘msmm m:t By Tmslle% fﬁr the: t&mﬁlﬁbk acﬁwm:s nfﬂolyilmd C'uhaﬂin Ptimaﬁr S;:hanl and mulso ﬂm

Rmd Gath n‘hc anmy Scﬁmi.

Details of the trustess whe sesved during the year, and to ihe dute thess accounts ate approved arc inchaded in the
Reference and Administrative Detnils o poge 3,

Members® Ligbility . o ‘
Bach member of the charitsble compawy undertakes to contribate to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it boing waundup while they are 8 member, or within ons ¥ear afier they cease to be ¢ membesz, such
amonit 48 may be required, not excocding £10, for the debis ond Jobilities conteacted before thoy ceased to bea

membit.

Trmstees® Indemnities
In aceordance widh the Companies Act 2006 it is confirmed that the Academy ingurance cover includes Tristees
Indemmity.

Method of Recruitment and Appolatimicat or Elcetion of Teustees

‘Thse Dincesan Bishop, following any meommendation from the Diocesan Education Trustess, may sppoint the nine
Foundetion Trostses, three of whom al Jeast chall be eligibde for clection or wppointiment as Parent Trustecs. The
‘board of imstees mmy appoint three Staff Tmstecs through such process as they may detcrmine, provided thal the
total number of Trastees (inclnding (be Head Teacher) who are employees of the Academy Tmst decs not execed
ane third of the totnd nuelcr of Trustees. Throe Parent Trustees are e%ecmdmmrdhncc wzth the Department for
Edueation guidance. The board of truztees can 8lso appoink one additional gpovernor as perraitted under aumber S1
of its Articles of Assoclation The total number of Trustess i3 thesefore sixteen.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Indnction and Trnﬁ\ﬁlgﬁf'l"ﬁmm

The traindng and induction. pmnded fit tew Trusteos will depend on their exisiing experience and 1s redative to the
needs of the individial 108, covering educational, Tegnl and fMinancis] matters. The Academy sdbiceibes to
SvAndon Bezough Council Gio Suppert which provides a full programme of training foz the b@arﬂ gfmxsm
Clifion Catholic Dhoese also provide training end support for all new and existing (rustecs. All dew Tr
be given a tourof the Acad ETHY and thie chonice fo incet with staff and pupils. Al Troskees are provided wilh caopie:-
of policies, procedures, mimaas, soconnts, budgels, plons and other documents that they wall need to underiake
Ovele role s Trustees. Al membets of fhe board of trustecs are DBS ehecked every thres years and each govermior
is required to fuive read the “Kecping Children Safé in Education ~ Past One” dovument. The bonrd of trustess
hove all received acoess o Gov Aok and sclwol c~maill sccounis o conifly with Genern] Date Protection,
Regulafions (GDPRY May 2018,

Organlestional Structore

The Academy hag a structure which consists of the Trastess, scnior leadership team and senior management team.
The keadership is commiited to profisional devilopment nm sucoession planning for the benefit of the Catholic
commmity.
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Trusiecs' Rmm‘t {eontinued)
The Head Teacher i the Accounting Officer,

Members
_ Trustees
Board of frissiees

['Sentpr Eeatership Team .
Hesd "I‘mh ey

" Sentor Mnnmmm
Team

|_Clags Teachers | SupportStaff |  Admin Staff

Arrangemenis for setting pay and remunerstion of key managemeit personael
Thf: imy mmagnmmi persannel of the: Academy Trust for the: year eoding 31% Au
Trustess & chip teae a5 Tisted on page 3. The sendor murmg

st 2000 eamprise of ihe
seqment leam fncrensed diiFing the

There is a pay policy which complies with the School Teachers® Pay and Conditions Docnment (STPCD) for |
September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and applies o all teaching staff employed at Holy Rood Cutholic Primary
School Academy,

For gl non-teaching staff, the Acedemy has agreed to follow the pay struchirs of the Locsl Authasity (Swmdon
Borongh Couteil) and tmplement all pay recommendation agreed by the relevant unions,

The Trustees {excheding staff) do not veccive any payfranuncration for carrylng ont thelr roles,

Retated Parties nnd other Connected Charities aed Organisations
There are oo felated partics which elfher conirol of signiGicantly inflisence fie decisipns and operations of the
.A:cademy The Acadenty has wrodked with Clifton Dinm in acwmanco wwith Ehwn Law and the fenchings of the
Rannan olie h, T ! king agreement in place with the other Catholic
sthoals witlsif the chester {ﬁw Sarvmel Fafﬂmh@ and the focus for the acadess
* The iiswiopmﬁt of the Relipious Education currculuns.
¢ A transition project for rending and tiaths (this was cermed oit diitinp lockdown for oiir yeds 6 children).
® mAsadcmyRETmmﬁmmdandladmo B working partics within the closter, mAmdmylsﬂm
RE planning with anch of the primary schools planning a diffesent endt across all year grotips, using the
agresd formak.
& The chuster arranged 8 Year 6 residential for all pelevant prisxary schools fo attend. Unfartunately, this
did got ke plase due to lockidown.

e yeae was a5 follows:

The Academy oontiued to work closely with local secbools outside of ihis pnﬂmmhm Do witwiine they were ol
facing whed tackling areas frown the School Illwelupmm Pan, including the complation of the Fonndation suhject
curriculiim in Tine with the new Ofsted framew

Schoal meals are contining to be provided by Pabulum with meals for both school sites being prepared at the
pham Road site;
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Trugtees® Report (continned)
(Ih]eem'u and Activitics

Objects nmd Alms

The Academy Trust's objectives are specifically tesiricied fo he following: to advancs for the public benefit
cducation in the United Kingdom, n pﬂf_l:ticulaj but without prejudice to e peasrality of the foregoing by
estoblisling, maintyinieg, carrying on, menaging end developiag » Catholie schoo! designated as such which shall
offer a broad and balsnsed curdculnm and shall be conductzd in ascardance with the priveiples, practices and
tenels of Hre Catholic Chuech and all Catholic cmon Iaw applytup thereto inghuding any truat dﬁ&d gawmmgt}w
nse of land used by fhe Acadeiny both generally and in particuler in relation to amanging for réligious education
and daily nets of wership and having regard to amy advice and followiag directives insued by the Diocassn Bishap.

+ Todevelop an elficisnt, sMctive and resilient Leaderabip nnd Management sirictise, E’iﬁgm afl leadars
have s eound knewledize of the achool and re confident in their roles. They will isve i eccurate and
figorous seif-evaloation which deives continnaus improvement.

+  To work collnboratively with ather schoals to ensmie bost practios and demcrnstrate an abilily to bead and
support othiers scsoss sl arsas of the currculum, wtﬂtawﬂhngmss to emibrace new ideas and strofegies.

Orateomes for Pajils asd Learaers

« Attminmentand progress in all subjects exceeds national averages for all pappils and is at least inline for

all viitoerable groups. o ‘
«  The school delivers & tich, insplring croricnbum for all papits, where knowledge, gkills and vocabulary
are develpped year of ear,
‘Teaching and Learting

« Toensure that tenching is molntined s always “good”™ or better, with a focus on contimanus.
improvemcent, leading to & yeur o yeus imczense in “outstanding'” teashing.

+  Toprovide children with creative and research-based leaming expecienses, ensuring Mt learning is
intripuing and exciting, whilst masdmislag achicwement:

s  Robustand rigorous assessmen sysfera make effective wse of data o snnwre that all children ere always
challeaged.

& ‘Three vear aini: Thcmbmﬂwmﬁogrﬂicdaﬂmvmd'

Environment and Binance

s  Tomanape a balanced budget through income: peneration and maximizing valne for modey in all sehool
spending,

o To maintin and develop a afe, physicol and uplifiing enviroament that is ready in all reepecis for
outstunding teaching and Ihaamdng tor all pupils and staff

» To maximise space and crenta opportunity for leaming, play and creativity

Community Coheslon

s ‘Encournge sctive pmﬁslpetlmmd effective engagement with parenty, parishes and the locol community
to improve e educationsl experience of pupils and develop well-rounded and eivic-minded members of
saciety.

s  Promote our nigie, sucoessfll schaol, ensuring that it is the “school of choiee™ for famities and that we.
coptnue 1o have maximmm mumbers of children on roll,

v To continue to support perents to underetand the curviculum and how (bedt childeen learn, regulting in

fToctive cocoumpement al kome,
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Trustees’® Report (continmed)
Culture and Ethos

s  Toswhin the cutstsnding Catholie cthos of the schook, and live the school vizion: ‘Bc‘long. Leaim,
Achiove

#  Toereate an envirooment wheve each child foels valned and sble to ruake i positive contribution both to
the sehio) amd the wider commmunity, thirough living the Gospel end Brivish Values,

® T erente an aspirmtionsi cultare in which 4l sembers of the school cammmpity commit fo life-lang leaming,
inetilling a sems of Tove, respoet and resilience and that is fee from bullying and harsssment,

Belong

At Holy Rood Cathiolis Primary School we ain to provide o aumaring and inclusive cnvironment eathizeed by the
Spitit of Christ to ensble everyons to make & positive contribution, both to the selivol wnd the wider community.
‘We will show Jove, compazeinn apd regpect for others,

A sanse: of unity will be crented by forming relationships that are based on teusk, Joyally, forgiveness and
Acceplince; we will eadsavour to set justiy and be peacemalers as Christ's dﬂncaplea inspired by the Gospel values.
We will cocanmge o sense of responsibility and help chifdven learn to appresiate God's wrotld around them through
reflection, missdon, prayes, bealing and peace.

Leéarn
‘We resolve o develop 8 semse of awe and wonder ot Goid's creation for our childien - whede ereufivity Bourishas
and everyone Is inspired to leamn, denwnstreting & curtosity aboit the world droutd them.,
We will stiive (o ensuse that all of our leamnevs ave able to foe now chellenges with confidedce, in o Christian
learning onwironment where informed risk taking and a resilient sititude are welcomed, eacouraged and achicved.
Oiir: possitive ndl enthunsiastic mmammnahuzgmﬂmm'%!mmaﬁmmm Esch will kasw fhat
meyam uniquely laved by Gad. We will continve fo enjoy our leaming and reflect o5 our offorts and achiovements,
nEpTting i 1o alamys try onr best

Achleve
Thie children will e determined in their daily challetges, gnintng confidents ia their ovwn ability, imagining what
they could echigve wilh continved effon and commitment snd working & fulfil the exchasive plan God has for cach
of them.
By fully engnging in all aspects Eli' seliol; children will have had the oppotunity to go an to bmm ambitious
and competent hedividuale; always sriving o achleve their full potentisl and positively paiti
world.

icipating it God's

Thc Acndmw's ey mamgr s encompassed in its sehos] vision which iz detailed in the “Otjocts and
Agtivities” seetion.

Safegmrdlmgchﬂdmmmhnnsdmaﬂ sclmnl policics and pmctise. 'We beligve in crenting and maimteining a
ocinett for all chiléren (o alliw thein o achieve and mike a posithve

hentthy, safe rnd enjoyuble kearning erivi
contzibution.

abmwand haﬁnmwd myﬁ;«mlum ‘
teaching and lesmdng oppottuniiles mnaspmmh!shwhm !
tralning apportunities for all staff

4 varied programie of sporting and after school activities

& commitment to the Chtholio sducation, including findraisiag activities in support of charitable
orpanisations

weekly Mazs for children and staff

» ‘whole echool assemblies and clazs Collective Waorship

N em@mmmmwmmmmmwmm“ nectition trough enbanced

O O O I
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Trustees' Report (continued)

& gffectivs collaborative working parmerzhip with the Cathalic chster schools and contioning to ecnhance
Timks with otter pricnary schools within the area

¢ high qoolity leamning resources, inchuding TU subsotiptions to support te children with thelr lesming in
Varksis Ways

e cifective programines in plece to ensore el children “catch op*® with the Jeaming they have missed dno
to the Covid-19 pandeiic,

- -
The Tmmr.s have paid dine regard fo the Charity Commission guidance en publin Denefit indociding what activitios
the ohwrity should wndert=ke. The Trustees consider that they have scted in fhe public benefit. The Acodemy
reached ont to the x:mnnmmtg by suppotting CAFOD, Mission Together, the: local Poodbank end Young Minds
charities, Work exporience placemenis have bosn provided for stodents Froin loeal sebools nad colleges.

Thiere has been lizison with the Holy Rood Parish for parish events such us the children’s litorgy snd First
Conwmnion prografime, The schiool has scgommodated parish events in the school hall, The Parents sd Teachecrs
Asgocistion have supparted the school by promoting find raising snd social events outside of the normal schocl
potictn. The Academy hires ont (he school buildings fo Jocal groups for the bensfit of the leca] community.

Strategic Report
Achi

The e emmnma mbc mmmmm to observing the importance of performance indicotors {o ensure thot it
strives for both edvestional and financial excellsncs.

A new fonndation subject cutriculum has now been written snd disseminated to all ataf¥, Thig year, wswodre-d

writh gz School Improvement Pariner and other local Primary schools, to think about what 4 good progre:

maa: shmﬂxﬂ took kike, incorporating knowledgs, akills and vocsbuylary, As o colkictive SLT, we decided ﬂmtﬁ‘-'ﬂh
nlation subject shandd ke split into strands so thot we could show peogression within cach of these across sl

year groups. The schools® subject leaders all created progression muaps for thiie subjects which Tinked to the

overall enquiry question, these encopsulnted ail of thie knowledge and skdlls that each year group had to lears,

The Coundntion silject planning was disseminated to Tl staff over the course of the sumumer térm o that these

conld be implemented in the Antnmn Terin 2020,

I, Bday of this year, we also appointed a now member of Hie Seeior Manngsment Tenm, who is responaible for
overseting the Poundation Suhjest Leads. Tt i hiey job 10 ensure that the moniloring of foundation subjects,
inghyling, popil voice; book Jooks, lenming walks are consistent and ! :hmwmmg regiilacly in Fne with timetable at
the front of the SDP dawmam. m i¢ also vesponsible for overseeing the sssessment of thess subjects so that
subject leads are clear aboat where the gnps in knovdedge are for thedr subjests thwoughout the schooland what e
plan will be to close them. Weknow fiel the foundation sabjects (without a scheme of wark) will be assessed on
an excel shoct for each year group, using separate tnbs for each subject. A Curviculum design statement has besn
writien for the webgite so tat this information can be shared with sil stakeholders. All staff have contributed to
what malees our scheol spocial and vnigiae a3 6 startiog poiat for this statement to be writtet,

The Academy contimoed to provide o breukinst elub on both school sites whees children can attend fhom 7.30um
each daymgbdmg,mxtm Familics fo have maore fexibility with childeare arrangements as well as providing the
children with an cxciting ortay of netivities, a ehance to socinbise with their pears before scliool as well as providing
thers with 2 nuliitious and vatied becalkiest,

The Acadenty contitrued fo-operate a walking bus to assist parcts with dropping off their children betweea the two

The Acadomy continued to operate its afber sehool provision offering parents childearo until 5.30pm svery sehool
dny Childeets feom boih of onr chool sites can use this fecility. The children have the opportunity bo participate
in & wide and varied range of fit and engnging setivities, chosen to mest fthe
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Trustees* Ieport (contioucd)

noeds of the individuals, They also receivo & Tealfhy snack and a high level of care to enable the children io gain
confidence and bearn now skills in 8 safe and fm learning eovironmett,

The Acadeny recruiled foue new membess of staff, Two NQTs and two experienced torchsrs who fodm part of
the Sevior Mensgement Team. One member Is the Lower Key Siags Two Leéad and tie offiss is (be Foundation
Subjects Curiewlum Lesd, A robust induction progremme was cotmpleted for gl aew staff sk e end of Term gix
sa that they wese famihar with sclioo] policles and proseduses ready for Seplember

The Academy contimuad to work closely willi its schuol ! improvement paitnér firoaghot the Academic vear and
developed & working relationship with an extzrnal consoltont in Maths,

Continuzd ssipport fioim fhe Perents and Teachers Associafion has enabled the Aendemy to parchase new maths
e;gmpmam. Regular fund taising events for the children mcludimg popeomn ¢iub and school dissos were Bedd prioe
1 foch , These. activities provide a broader leiting expetience which will have & positive impect on the
children’s davclnpmm throughout the schiool. i lockdown period has bad o financial impact to the Parent and
Teachers Assoolation a2 all findeaising events from Manch 2020 otvwneds Jind to be cancelled.

‘I‘he a\cadmy closed dive fo Tockdown on 20 March 2020 until 8% June 2020, when o small number, of children
returned to school, “The children from Recoption, Yeur one md Year six attended sehionl for two days a week in
_smail bubbles. During tiee lockdown peried, the schwel only remained open to valnerable and key workes children
and the Academy had 2 saxismum of ten key worker children pee doy attending school doring this time.

The Teachess worked incredibly haed fo cosnre ol children had necess to online leasming whilet the school was
closed and teachers imade remalar contiet wilh all the children in thedr class.

The  gippoited the childien and fageilics during Inckdown and had & totust risk asessment in plass to
mp chtlﬁmn @aﬁ staff as safec as possible. The Academy perticipated in the national fhee meals voucher sclieme
with foity familes bensfiting froin this govermment schieme,

. Townrds the end of the suimomee term, and whilst sil] in lockdown, the: shaff made gond nep of @z time by
refurbishing all ousido argas with finces and chieds re-podnted. The hallways and library were also re-decorated
&t the Groundwell Road site.

Regular staff meetings were held duting lockdowa via Zoom to cosnre: there was congtant ecntact and
comimuTiention with all staff. The stiff were offered suppart of an exlernal counselfor during this difficult

The Acsdemy successtully snbmitted & elaim to Department for Education at:the end of the sumrer teem for
exceplionnl c0sia aszooiated with the coronavirus eutbrenk. However, the Acadery are still encountering further
enceptional cosds associated with the coronaviras cuthreak and are waiting for guldance on whether s subsequent
claim wil be svailable.

The Acndamy submitted & deficit budget for 202020218, The Imstecs agreed to this deficit as edditional iething
provision was needed to suppott cldldren been in school dise to cofobnvirus lockdown in the spring
term. The Acadesay has (he added fisan: & £lit site peimary school and during the year the
trustecs contmcted the Loesl Authotity fo request that a & aplit site grant be considored when agreeing the fund
formala for2020-21 bat (s was refiised by the Swindon Schook® Formm.

Atibe ebd of the 20]9-20, there was oo end of yesr dats available for Barly Years Foundation Stage, key stage one
or key sfage two children as hess were cancelled due to the Covid-19 panderile,
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Trostees® Report (continged)

Koy Performance Indicntora:

Eduicational indicators inslisde anatysis ofresulis from the Barly Years Foandation Stage Profile, Year One Fhonles
’res(maa End of Koy Stage Onc Tests and Bod of Key Stage Two Teats, In schoo] aseessments are carvied out thres
times 8 year using revised assessment spreadsheste which support the end of Key Siage exprefsfions. The
Academy’s assessmant tracker sysicm costires that the sobool can ldentify progress of alll childpen from theiv key
glage related sharting pointy, &5 well b3 idendifying vulnemble groups and individuals, slicwing fhe school to farrow
arry ediseational paps.

Thee A@demy Is mamtnfcdf ul- ﬂu‘. compteuam aiidl subsmissdon to the Bducation and Skillg Funding Agency

After making gp;pmpmbn Enquirics, the bourid of trustees hiss 2 high expectation fhat the Academy bas adequate
resourees {0 continue op:miaixai existence for the foreseesble future. For this renson, # continmes to adopt de
poing concern hagie in preparing the finuncial siabernents, Furber details regarding the adopdion of the going
concern basis can be found in e Acconnting Rolicies note of fhe fimancial statements,

m mw source of funding is from the Departmeat for Education, via the Educstion and Skills Runding
Agesey. This funding has supporied the kcy ohj):wms of the Acadomy. The bufk of the Acﬂitemy*s Tunding is
the General Anmeal, Grant (restricted s ). As the Ac&demy his completad its expansion then no further
fundieg is availeble from the Clifton Dinm The reatricted fixed asect fund bafmce which inclodes ungpeat
oapite] grants is reduced by annual deprecistion eliarges over Ui expected usefil life: of Hig assets conectned, in
line with the ruies contained in the Acadermy’s Aceoumting Policy, The balance sheed includes s Uabllity for
£568,000{2019: £461,000) in seladion to e Acadginy’s FRS 102 vahslicn of the Iocal povernment pension scheme
which the board of trastees have agroed, ghould be inclnded within the Rigk Register,

Total expenditure for e yese = £2,233 631 (2019: £2,153,642)

The academy medz &t in year doficit of £249 (change in buluncs of restricted peneral Ninds (sxcheding ponsion
teserve) plis unrestricked funds). At the 31 Anguast 2020 1he actial position of rescrves was £173,556 (being the
total balanee st 31 Angust 2020 on rextrictod genaral fonds (excluding pension reserve) plus the balsnos on
wnpestrieted funds),

The defiil on the defined benefit pension scheme ingreased flom £461,000 to £368,000.

Plesse velor 10 the comnpechensive anditors’ sepost and the yeat-end acconnts for further details and infrmation
regerding the Acadensy’s finanees.

The Trustees have determined that the appropriste level of free cazh ressrves should be approximalely £165,000,
represerding one moath’s chariteble activities resomeaes expendad (excluding doprecintion). The teason for this is
to provide sufficient woeking caphal to cover delays between quimg aod receipt of grants aud 46 provide &
cushion Lo deal with unexpected étasigencias such as nrgost maistenanoe

As af 318t Aggust 2020, the Acadeiny had free reserves (fotal fanda Jess the emount held i fixed esscts and
restricted fiinds) of £138,089 (2019: £114,785). The Academy mBao he].d i ammml of £35,467 on restricted
genetal funds, Therefore, ibe reserves hisld wee elighy ehove the reguive

The intal balance at 31 Angnst 2020 on restricted goncral fimds (exclnding pofision reaesve) | |
pivesteieted fonds wme £173,556,
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Trustees® Report (continved)

In total, ot 31 Augnas 2020, the funds of the Acadenty were negutive £162,954, which iz repreacnded by o deficit
. balange of £301,043 of restricted funds and £13R,089 unrestricted fimds, £198,124 of the restricted funds can
only be realised by disposing of tangible fixed ascls.

The ustees acknowlodge the Incresss pensioa reserve deficit of £568,000 (2019 £461,000) and will manitar the
situntion with 3 view to increasing contiibutions at & latar date in order to rednea the doficit,

Thc Tmm']ﬁyafmﬂmﬁgeﬂ that any day-to-day srtplits moies will be invested e high nterest depnsn
accounts with the current bankers. Thess monies are accessible should the need arise.

Principsl Risks and Unoertainiizs:

The Tiustees bave asgessod the major risks do which the Acadery iz expozed; in particular those reloiing to the
cureent Covid-19 pandemie, speeific feaching, provigion of facilities and other opesutional arens of the Acadenyy
andd s fnnnees. The Trustees bave implemented o nuimber of systems to aszess ridka that the school fices,
especislly in dhe- operational apens (2.g. in relation to tesching, health and safely, bebaviour and school lrips) and
iti relation to the control of finsuce, There has beca s contimantion of

epcrational procedures gueh 05 clearaness for new staff and visitors and infernal financial controls in ordec 1o
mindimige risk.

The Trustees liave ao agreed rigk register, risk strategy and business contianity plan.
Thia risk register is regularly rovicwed by the bosrd of tmstess, The bigheat risks are identificd and contrel

procedures agreed by the board of trastees. An addition to the risk refisier relating 19 Covid-19 wes produced In
April 2021,

The Trusbees have complicd witls their duty snd identified and reviewed the risks to which the Acadeiny is cxposed
cd appropriste ooftrols are in place 1o nrovide tessonable sssaranice against fraud and &tfor,

Finnneial

The Academy hos mnsldembln reliance on continued Govermment fanding through the BSFA, I the lust yesr,
96.5% of the Academy's idcoming resamtes was tltimately Government Fanded and. whilst this level ig expeeted
to contine, thete Is no asnrance that Guvwernment poliey’ or gtaetice will remain the same o that public finding
will continns 8t the same tevels of on the same tBems. As a split site primary, the Academy sought additional
finaneia} support in dbe fotm ofa split site grant from the Lacn! Authority. Unforunately following the consultation
pesind this was refised by Swindon Schools' Forum.

Faftures In governanee andfor manapenent

The risk in thils area arlses from poteatinl failire to effectivoly manage the Academy's ﬁnancw, infernal condrols,
eognpﬁam ind regalations and leglslation, stahptory returns ete.  The Toustess continue fo roview and easure that
prrlate measures arc in place to mitigate these risks,

Reputational

The coutinsing success of the Assdesny is dependent on continuing fo aktroed appheants I sulficlent marvhers by
maintainitg the highost educati ndards, To titigate thiz risk, Tstess siduce that stiident success and
achisveinant are closely monitored aail vevigwed.

Safeguarding and ¢hild pmtezlinn

The Trustess m;ﬁma to gpgure thet the highest standards are maintsined in the areas of selection and monitoring
of staff, the operation of child safeguarding and profection policies and procedures, henlth and safoty end
discipline. Assme] training foo ail staff and imtees 1s onvied onl, The Academy paechase the ecrvices from an
external consultant fo corry out anmual revicwe on policy and prastice.

Stalfing
The suscess of the Academy is reliant on the quality of its staff and 5o the Trustees monitor and review polities
and procedurcs to ensute continned development and training of ataff as well a5 ensuring thore Is clear sucesssion,
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Trusices* Report (eontinued)

Praod and mismanagement of funds
The Academy has appoinicd accominnts to wndertake & progeam of additlonsl testing and bo carty odil checks o
financeal ayzicmg and regonds 85 required by v Academy Financiil Handbook,

Fundraiziop

The Academy Tiuet docs not uec mny external mndraimn Al fundeatsing undestaken during the year wasg
monitored by the Trustees. The Academy will sack inities 1o apply for gramiz, The PTA, o scparte
orgemigation, taises fonds from the commmmity which ase donated to the Acadiemy. The Acndemy hss not received
any coniplainly regardiog the mndms&ﬂg gl il PTA.

Plans for Putuie Periois

The Acadeny midataing a School Development Plan that outlines the edusstionnl sims over the next year, This is
s wotking document which is reviewed on a regular busis af senior mansgement

team meetings withall m{‘t‘amd Trostets contributing to its development.

There ts & working Ehmc-year buidget plen thet is maintained and updated by the Sclwol Business Manager, Thic
iz reported on at the Finace, Buildings aml Risk Management Committiee and Board of Tiustess meetings.

Auditer
In s0 far ax the Tmstees ag awmne:
v there is m6 rébevant sudit information of which the Charitable Company*s auditor is wnaware; and

v ihe Trustess have taken sil stcps that they ought to have taken to make thetiselves aware of any relevant
sudit tnformation and to cetablish thet (o mnditor i3 aware of that information.

Trustees' Feport, in rating a Strategle Repott, approved by order of the members of the Bosrd of Trustess on
25% Noveinkier 2020 andlgned o its behalf by

Fhil Gilvin
Chair of Trustees.
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Governance Statement

Scepe of Respoosibility
As Trustess, we acknowledge we have averall responsibitidy for ensiiring thit H;uly Rood Catholic Primary Schoo!
s an effoctive end approprishe systeem of control, finaneinl and otberwise, However, sich o gysten is designed &
manage mthet than eliminate e risk of fuilism to schieve business obmwx‘ ad can provide ooy reasonable
and not abaohite sesinanes agnitest meterisl misstabemernt of loss,

Tha Board of Trustees has delzgafed the day-fo-doy responsibility to the Head Teacher as Accourting Officar, for
ensusing financial controls conform o the Fequirempnis of both propaicky and good ﬁnanmal mensgemeat and i
accordance with the requireracats and responsibilitics assigned W it in the funding agreement betweesn Holy Rood
Cathofie Primary School and the Secretary of State for Bdarstion. They are also responsible fior reporting to the
Buard of Trusfess any inaterial weaknesses or breakdowns 1n infernal enntinl.

Gaveyrnanee
BOARD OF TRUSTERES
PINAMCE, BUILDINGS ASLIT) MSK
MANAGEMENT COMMITT!

‘Fhe: Pull Board of Trustees holds at least dues meslings o year and commilices meet once every term, ‘Frustacs
vigitibe sehood regulary snd tske an active pmt n echool life. All Ttustees ane nssigned a subject to which they
monitor by mecting with the tenchar who is respensible for tils subject, at [zast twice a yenr, Thess meetings arc
documenited on Governnriidh.

Thie structire of the: main committees detsiled on. the dingram is 83 sgreed by the full Board of Trustees, All
commitices consist of & minlmam of four Trsiees, one of whom shall be the Hend Teacher. The membership of
tommittess 5 decided by fhe full Beand of Trastees. The quotiim for myBoml of Trustoes mnclmg and voiz mask
be onc balf {rounded up to & whole number) of the complele membership of the Board of Truste % mclndmg
vacancies. The quornm for any cormmittes meeting and for any vote must be thres Tivstets whe are m :
fhe committiee, (o move) &3 detsrmined by the commilise, one of whom shall be the Head Teacher,
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'ﬁm Fuli Board of Trusiees (BGB] met o2
2019 255 Sepbernher, 27% Novewber,

2020 Virdual Mectings 5% May, 24® June, 150 July

The ‘Trustee’s away doy which was due 1o take place on 27% March 2020 was cancelled due to Covid-19

The Standards Committes met one

2019 9% October

2020 15% Jarmary (meetings cancelicd 298 Apeil and &9 July due to Covid-19. Any agenda thetns were
considered at the FGR)

The Finsmee Buildisgs and Risk Manmgemem Commbttee (FBRM) met os:

019 16" Oclaber

2020 29® Jannery (meetings canccllcd 8% May and 24% Junc due to Covid-19. Any agenda ftesns were

eensidered af the FGB)

oy’ Mmﬂmen!?mible Aftendance

Foll bonyd of Stundavds | Finance, Bufldingy,

frustess Commitise and Risk
Manapement
Comipiitles
&6 22 NIA

I Glivin (Chialr of Trustess

Antne Jones o6 212
[Biil Camphbell 46 NA
Tt Crook " &6 WA
Rebecea Delghton w8 WA
Nowi Bry o6 F17]
Doron Kielan 4 m WA
| Ray. Lqu‘ire (nppomtea 110 afs N/A in

SHE

58

Phllﬁ?am ' ‘ [ NfA 172

Katarzyna Polewkalendes . 55 1 N/A
(a almted ”Ii‘“‘ Novenber 2019)

5t 02 : N/A

AbNishek Shukla (appointed 14% T WA R
Noviember 2019) i .
Ticlen Walsh 6/6 27 NIA
Helen Thoumns 616 2 272

A at 31 Augnst 2020 the Bonrd of Trustées had the following vaciney:
One Poundation Governor vaciney.
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Governance Stoterent (continued)

The respaasibllities of the commitiees ang:-

Standords Committes ~ All mabters relating to personnel, both pupils and ataffing, and mattecs relating to the
mtsm[mn taught in lﬁtﬂ:hﬁﬁl indadimg the allocation of posts of responsibility.

2. Resrufisnetit asid Aﬁ.ﬁﬁl}“ iraenl
3. Tnduction

4, Developoseiit

6. Supply Cover

ki Leavc mf Ahg{:ﬂm

b B Rch_gmua Edm:zmtm

2. Deciding oo the inanitering and reparting strategics to be wead which will allow the Board of Trustees to
bo snffictontly informed and enables it to falfil s statutory duty to ensure that the National Caericubom is
being followed throughout the school

Sc:?ma] Development Plan - ¢ reicaiium Section

‘Eﬂlm of wkamd leaming srategles

1 nsiders fimding and training requiraments to meet ICT fatpets,

2 Emums Ehm “best velue® principles are upplicd whilst mnbing use of svailable fimding.
3. Contritutss to the formualatisn of ICT policy and development plana.

4, Monitors the development of ICT as & curricahum sabject.

5. I1CT Infrestic

cture inchuding split site working

mimitiee — AT motters felating to monagement of rigk, budgets,

buildings ond site,

L
2,
3,
i
64
7.
8.

Pfarmmg the Budget
Approying the Budgel
Monitoring the Budge?
Stheme of Delegation Review
Conditzon of Site and Premises
Repairs and Matftetnnes
. Healthyand Safety
10, Ingurance
11, Planning Stisteges
12. Revisw of the Risk Rogisier
IcT
1. Considers funding and training requirements to meet ICT tarpets,
2. DBnsures that ‘best value pelnsiples wre opplied whilst malking usc of svailnbic funding.
3. Contributes to the foramlstion of ICT policy and developmont:plans,
4. [ICT Infrastruoture inchding split site working,

The Pay Committoe, with tepresentatives from the Finonce, Buildings and Risk Menagement Commities and the
Standerds Commitice exists to review salaries, This Committes has no odher duties,

Other apecific committecs set up by the Board of Trustees inclnde:  Admlisslons Comanities, Stuff Dismisea]
Comittee and Disinissal Appeo] Commitiee.

The above commibttees falfll thekr respective functions as vequired by law.
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Governance Stutement (coutinned)

During tee financial year ending 3 1st Angust 2020, these wers no key changes in the composition of the Board of
Trustoca,

The coverage of work thai the Board of Trustees citries oart aod jip responsibilities are detailad above.

fear 2015-20

The year paw confinuing challenges i the mannpeiwnt wid govemance of the school:

- Imlcmmemg (e aveas demifisd on the School Development Plan relaling fo our previous Ofsted
Inspection, Inchuding improving the conststency in teaching and learting

- m challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic

Tha Schiool Improvement Parver, sppoinded 1o 2016-17, cmtﬂnucdm work closely with the sc}mo! The schaol
contitmed with the progress to dovelop arear which have had 4 significant ivpect and this can be evideaced
fhrough learning walks and book looks, The wddition of two new mewbers of experienced staff to the senior
management team Wl ensre the progress contimees,

The start of the academic year 2019-20 saw a change of Clerk. The appoiniés is currently working towards “The
Prolzesional Clerk” qualification ss recommended by the Department for Bducation.

The Head Teacher will continue to wse the Analyse Schoni Perforwance Dare (ASP), local antharity data a5 well
o5 the school's own robust data system o summarise and highlight key information 4o share with the board, This
sllows il stakeholders to bave s secune knowladpe on the Academy’s achicvemenis and sehool focus areas far the
next scadenslo year. The bosrd acknowledpes that this information is accurale and gives a conipatison to national
data. At the end of the 2015<20, thete wos no data available doo to end ofymr asecesmicd for EYPS, kov stopge
one tid key stoge two chilldren being cancedied dite to the Covid-19 pand

The Academy suppoﬂeﬂﬂm children and families duting tockdown throngh regular comtast snd provided the meal
vouchers o the pupil premivin famifies. All children ware st work to complets and the Toashety hisd rgilar
contict with the clilldyen in their class, The Acadeiny remained open dudig lockdown for our yulnerable children
ane key workes families end children sttersded every day. A robuat dak asscesmatit was dovieed and pit it place to
keep the chilldren snd staff a3 safe a8 poasible.

Revicw of Value for Money

As Accounting Officsr, the Flead Teather has responzibility for ensuring thut thi: Acadeny delivers pood volue io
fho use of public reeources. The Accounting Gfftcer understards that value for money refere to the educational and
wider socictal ontoomes achieved in tetum for the tRxpayer resorees reocived.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy’s nse of its resources has pmmdmﬁ frood vnlue for money
during easl scademic year, and reports to the Board of Timstess whero value for money ean bo improved, including
the wse of benchmarking data where available, The Accounting Officer for the Academy hnadeimmd ivproved
valtue for money during fhe year by;

s Constantly reviewing ibe siaffing slructure o ensure education goals arg achieved,

o FHosuring that the correct personal protective equipment wag ayailable for all members of staff.
Ensuring 2ll ehildren had access to online learning reqouvces so they could work from home during the
Tockdowm period,

» Having a Finance, Buildings and Risk Management (FBRM) Cemmitize who fakc an sctive sole in sgrecing
cach year's budget and how we have piiliasd eur regoiinces (o achieve our atedersio goals.

o The Academy with suppott frem the Parents and Teachers Association organising extre-camienlar evenits o
etiliance ¢very child's kearning.

» The Aeademy continging to opeeate 2 hreskfast club and after sehool provision for all ehilidren.

+ Letting ot sclico] hall to geqicrite income.
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Governance Sfatement {continaed)

The Purpost of the System of Infernal Control

The gyéiem of inteinal control ia designed to manags risk 1o & rensonable Yevel rather than to eliminnte all tsk of
failure fo achisve policies, alms and @bjeclw, 1t can therefore anly provade reasonablc and not ebentnte sssurance
of cifectiveness, The system of jobemal control is based oa momgmfng process designed o identify and peioritice
ths risks to the scbdevement of Academy’s policies, sims and ohjectives, 1 evaluate the likelibood of thoge risks
being realised and the impact should they be realized, and to manage them effi cngnuy, effectivelyand econotileally,
The system of internal control has bsen in place in Holy Reod Catholic Primary Schoat for the year ended 31
August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the ananat report and financial shatpmenits,

Capacily to Handle Risk

Thie board of trustees bas reviewed the by rishs to which fee acadamy tonst 15 exposed topether with the
operathng, financtal wnd compliance controls that have besn implenserited to mitigate those rigks, The board of
trstees iz of the view that there is » formal on-going presess for identifying, evaliating and managing the
ocademy trwst's significant risks that bag bean in place for the period 1 Scptember 2019 31 Angust 2020 and up
to the date of approval of fhe annonl report and fmancinl stebeasents, This process 4 cepplarly reviewed by the
bourd of trustees.

The managoment of risk is Jed by = Bowrd of Trustee’s repreacntstive, the Head Teacher, the School Business
Manager snd delegated member of staff, School siaff are adequately and thevoughly tralned and equipped in all
areas affecting any risk to the success of e Acadensy and the gafety of staff and children.

The Rizk and Ccmlro] Frameworl

The Academmy’s systath of infernal finraedal codten] 1s beaed on & fremework of regrlar management informintion
end sdmindstradive procedurss inclnding the segregation of ditics and a system of delegation and accountability.
In pasticular, it inchedes:

+ comprehensive biidgeting aad mopitoelng eyzderme Wdﬁl an ananal budget aed pegisddic financial reports
which are reviewed mnd agreed by (he Board of Trmiees; and

+  romular coviewa by the Trustoes® Finanoo, Buildings sad Risk Management comuilise of reparts snd
wobthly managemeat aceounts which meazwre finansial performance against the forcoasty and of major
purchase plaos, capital works and expenditure progmnites; and

»  gctiing targets to measure financisl and other perfocmance; and

+  clearly definod purchasing (asset purchase or capital investmen) guidelines; anid

s delegation of authority and segregntion of duties; and

»  identification and manapemoent of rigks.

The Board of Trustzes has considered the need for 4. gpecific intemal andit fanction and haz dacided not tos appoint
an Infevasl auditor, Hﬁmm", the Trustees have appoinfed MHA Monabans, the external auditor, to perform
admnwml cbecks, The reviewer's role includes gMﬂg; adyices on financlal matters and perfoeming 8 tange of chocks

ﬂie At.adezmy 8 ﬁmmmal ysteng. [n | particular, the chw&s carried auf o the pmmd chided revisw of

wenaium, and testing of fived assats. Daan annoal

busis, ﬂmmﬂmem@s i the Buml omeﬁws oo the opmnnn of the system of control and the discharge
the Board of Trustees' ﬂnmcﬁal Tespon epart to.he commitice outiming the arcas reviewed
key flodings, reconvmendations and conclisi mittee consider actions mﬂassesaymmym
progress, The reviewer hag delivered ﬂveiz sohedule of work as placmi There were o material control isgues
wrising a5 a result of the reviewed s wark,

The Board of Trustees have ensured that there is sepregation of diifies to maintsin good practice, There are stringet
gutdetines snd delegation of dutles to maintsin pood practice mlating to all aspects of the Academy’s finsmees.
The Schema of Delegation iz reviewed and apreed mmmﬂy by tlie Board of Trustess and ia & further safeguard.
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Governance Statement (continmed)

Review of Elfectiveness

Az Ascounting Officer, the Head Teacher, has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. Durfop the financial year ending 31 Augnst 2020 the revicey hag been informed by:

¢ fhe work of the revicwer; and
o the work of the external anditors; and
+  the schood resonrce management 5 (-asseesmeqt wal; and

& thework of the Schoo! Budiness Menagee within the Academy who has responsibility for the development
and madntensinee of the ntcenal contro] fiamework,

The Accounting Offieer has beenadvised of the implications of the reenlt of their review of the syatem of internal
contzol by the trustees® Finavce, Buildings and Risk Management Committes and it by been aoted that no
weaknesses have been Identified. Tho committes o22 continuously looking for ways to improve the systems is in
place.

Approved by order of the roetubens of the board of trustocs on 25 November 2020 and stgned on its behalf by:

Phil Gilvin, Naowl F@w\’-
Cheir Accouating Officer
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Statoacent on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Aceounting Officer of Holy Rood Cathalis Primary Schaol, 1 havie considered iy resporsibility to notify the
Academy Trist's Board.of Trustess end the Bdncation apd S&!l& Fuading Ageacy (ESFA) of material mguhﬁly,
impropriety and non-complinnoe with ESFA terms and conditions of fitnding, under the fanding agresment in place
betweca the Acedemy Trust snd the Scaretary of State, As part of my eonsideration 1 have bad due regnrd to the
feguirements of the Acadermies Financial Handbool,

. Tconfisu that T and fhe Acadermy Trst's Board of Trustees are abls o identify any material irvegular or imprope
use of fitnds by the Academy Twist, o matétial non-sotmplinuce with fhe torms and conditions of funding under
ihe Asademy Trust’s funding agreement and the Acedemics Financial Handbook,

1 cunfinm that oo instances of makesial irvegularity, impropricty o¢ finding non-compliance have been digcovered

to datc. Iany instatioes are identified after the dafe of tlnsswlu_mmt, these will be natificd to the Board of Trostees
and ESFA,
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Statement of Trastees’ Responsibilities

The trustees (who are aleo fhe dircctors of the charitable company for ths purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees® Report and the finnncial stalements in necontance with the Acadomies
Accounts Direction published by the: Bducation and Skills Funding Agency, United Kinpdom Accounting
Standards (Unitsd Kingdom Generslly Avcepicd Accouniing Prectice) ond applicable law and segulations,

Cotnpany law regquires the trustoes fo prepare finansial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the trustecs must not approve the financial statements unless lhay ate gatisfied that ey give a true and fair view
of the slate ol alfairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resoiirses,
inclnding its income and expenditure, for thet period. In preparing these financial stalemeniy, the irmstees anc
required to;

»  gelect suituble accounting policies ond then apply them consistently

o ghserve the methods and prinsiples in Hse Charitics SORP 2015 and the Acaderries .u\cwuns Direstion
2019 to 2020

& make judgmnents and acronnting estimates that are teasonable and prdent

»  ginte whether applieabls UK Agmmmng Standards have been followed, subjest to any tmteﬂgl
departures disclosed and explained in (be fnancinl statemenly

+  prepase the fivancisl statemeats on the going concesn basis unbess it s inapprogriate to prcsime thal the
ehisritable company will contimue in business

The trustees are rs.smmﬂzslc for keeping edeguate acconnting records that are sufficicat to show and explain the
charitable comypaty*s ransastions and disclose with reasongble socuracy abany timg ibe Snancial position of the
charitable company ind enable them o easvre (bak the fiaancial statements comply with fhe Companies Act
2DDE. They are also responsible for safegnarding the sesels of the charitable company snd hence for taking
repsotble steps for (he prevention and detection of fraud and other inreguiarities.

The trustees are respansible for ensnring that in i condnet and operation the charitible coimpany applios
financin) and other coatrols, which conform with the requirements both of propeioty and of good finansial
manspemens. They are also responsible for etiswring grants roscived from ESFA/DIE hive been applled for the

EATIR{ER
porposes imtended.

‘The trustees aps regponsible fos the maimbenance and mfcgmy of'the corpornte and finassia) infarmetion inchded
ot ibe chanizhic mmpmny“s wrsbmm Legisletion in the Ublted Kingdom goveming the preparafion nnd
dizssetinoton of finansisl st 5 miy differ from legislation in other purisdictions

Approved by ordes of the members of the Boasd of Trmstoes on 25® Movember 2020 and signed on its hehalf by:

EeNdashinsenbEREkEid RS P EA4RI$ 0L

Phil Giivin
Chaly




Report of the Indegendeht Auditors to the Members of
Holy Rood Catholic Primary School

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Holy Rood Catholic Primary School (the 'charitable company’) for the year
ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the
Education and Skilis Funding Agency (ESFA).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you

where:

- the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

- the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the charitable company'’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for
a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the fi nanC|a| year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you

if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Regort of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Holy.Rood Catholic Primary School:

Responsibilities of tiustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the trustees (who are -also the directors of ‘the:

‘charitable company for.the purposes of company law) are responsible for the. preparahon of the financial statetnents.and
for being satisfled that they give a true and fair visw, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary
fo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material mlsstatement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements; the trustees aré responsible for assessirig the charitable company's ability 1o
conitinue as a going concern, disclosing, as. applicable, matters related to going concern and lsing the going ¢oncern
basis of accounting unless the trustees gither intend to hqmdate the charitable company of to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative-but to do so..

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
OUF objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes our’

opinion.. Reasonable ‘assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

. accordance with ISAs. (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can. arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financlal statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Réporting

Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of the Independent

Auditors,

Use of our report :
This report is made solely: to the charitable' company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of

the Companies Act. 2006. ‘Our audit work has been tndertaken 50 ‘that we might state to the charitable company's:

fnembers those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors! report and. for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted pf\aw, we do hot accept or assume responsibility to anyone-other than the charitable company and the
charitable comppiny's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have forred..

Steven Frasey (Senior Statutory-Auditor)
for and on behg f-of MHA Monahans
Statutory Auditgys

38-42 Newport Street

Swindon

Wiltshire

SN13DR

7o ieseresssyneaetsiaesenit e innssantenaget
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Independent Reporfing Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to
Holy Rood Catholic Primary School and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA), as included In the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have carried out an engagement to.
obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed. and income recejved by Holy Rood Catholic Primary
School during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been ‘applied to the purposes identified by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Holy Rood Catholic Primary School and the ESFA in accordance with- the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Holy Rood Catholic Primary School and the
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Holy Rood Catholic Primary School and the ESFA, for
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Holy Rood Catholic Primary School's accounting officer and the reporting

accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Holy Rood Catholic Primary School's funding agreement

with the Secretary of State for Education and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2019, for
. ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the

financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance. and
are to obfain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income recelved during the period
1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to.the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the ESFA.
We performed a limited assurance engagement as deflned in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information. and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A fimlted assurance engagement is more.limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant malters that might be identified in
a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our'eng'agement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant fo the regularity :and propriety of the
charitable company's income and expenditure.

In planning and conducting our work we had due regard to professional guidance, including the Academies Accounts
Direction 2019-20. The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion, Includes, but is not limited to:

- Enquiry of senior management and the Academy's Trustees.
- Inspection and review of the accounting records, meeting minutes, prior year regularity report, internal control
procedures, management representations and declarations of interest.
- Observation and re-performance of the financial controls.
- Réview of the results of the Academy’s process of independent checking of financial controls, systems,
transactions and risks.
< Consideration of governance issues
Conclusion ’
in the course of ouir work,. nothmg has come to our attention which suggests that in ali material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been applied to
purpose/sll/r)tenjzi by Parhament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

MHA Monafrans—
Chartered Accountants
38-42 Newport Street
-Swindon

Wiltshire

SN1 3DR

Date: MM&J%%
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Holy Rood Catholic Prirharv School

Statement of Financial Activities

(Incorporating an Income and Expenditure Account)
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

2020 2019
Fixed
Unrestricted Restricted asset Total Total
funds funds fund funds funds
Notes £ £ £ £ £
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS
FROM
Donations and capital grants 2 47,000 1,710 . 8,793 _ 57,503 72,428
Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's
educational operations 3 35,992 1,906,330 - 1,942,322 1,914,018
Other trading activities 4 12,558 . - - 12,558 14,832
Investment income 5 142 - - 142 149
Total . 95,692 1,908,040 8,793 ' 2,012,525 2,001,427
EXPENDITURE ON
Charitable activities
Academy's educational
operations 3 72,388 2,038,593 113,000 2,223,981 2,153,642
Total ' 6 72,388 2,038,593 113,000 2,223,981 2,153,642
NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) 23,304 (130,553) (104,207) (211,456) (152,215)
Other recognised
gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on
defined benefit schemes - - - - - *(198,000)
Net movement in funds 23,304 (130,553) (104,207) (211,456) (350,215)
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward 114,785 (401,980) 335,697 48,502 398,717
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED »
FORWARD 138,089 (532,533) 231,490 (162,954) 48,502

The notes form part of these financial statements
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2019

, 2020

Motss g
Tengibie nssets 12 188,124 301,481

CURRENT ASSETS .

Stocks 12 2 882 2800
Dabtom o 14 147,318 174,438
Casgh at bank and in hand ' 282201 273,312

442,601 460,642

CREDITORS
Amouris falling dus within one year 15 {235,570) 242,621}

NET CURRENT ASSETE 206 029

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ADS5,046 800,502
PENSION LIABILITY 18 | (588.000) (461,000}

FUNDS 18
Fhiod asged furd 231,480 335,687

Restricted income fund ' 35,487 59,020
Panglon reserve (563,000)  {461,000)

Tobsl vestricted funds (301,043) {86,283
Unrestreted fimds 138,089 114,785

TOTAL FUNDS {182,954 48802

The basncial slatements were approvad by the Bodrd of Trustess and authodasd for sate on 25% November 2020 and
ware dlgnad on s behalfby:

PGivin- Trustee

The notes farm part of e financial statements
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Holy Réod Catholic Primary School

Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

2020

Notes £
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 22 19,687
Net cash provided by operating activities 19,687
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets - (9,643)
Capital grants from DfE/EFA 8,793
Interest received 142
Net cash used in investing activities (708)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in )
the reporting period 18,979
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the reporting period 273,312
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the reporting period 292,291

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Holy Rood Catholic Primary School

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 Augqust 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financial statements of the charitable company, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement
of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2019)', Financial
Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the
Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Holy Rood Catholic Primary School meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the functional curréncy of the charity and rounded to
the nearest pound.

General information.
Holy Rood Catholic Primary School is a company limited by guarantee, without share capital, incorporated in
England and Wales. The registered office address can be found in the Trustees' Report. :

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from
the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income ’
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitlement to the funds, it is
probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance
sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not
unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred
income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitiement occurs before income is received,
the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entittement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised
when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related conditions), where it is
probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Other income
Other income including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
charity has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other
trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'Income from other trading activities' and
the proceeds are recognised as ‘'Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value the
items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold.
This income is recognised within 'Income from other trading activities'.

Page 27 continued...



Holy Rood Catholic Primary School

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Donated goods, facilities and services ]
Where material, donated goods and services are recognised as income when the academy has control over the
item, any conditions associated with the donated item have been met, the receipt of economic benefit from the
use by the academy of the item is probable and that economic benefit can be measured reliably. On receipt,
where material, donated goods and services are recognised on the basis of the value of the gift to the academy
which is the amount the academy would have been willing to pay to obtain services or facilities of equivalent
economic benefit on the open market; a corresponding amount is then recognised in expenditure in the period of
receipt.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third

party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the

obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up

of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct

costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more .
than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those

activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time

spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Charitable activities
Costs of charitable activities are incurred on the charity's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the charity apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets
Assets costing £200 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of
the related asset on a basis consistent with the Academy's depreciation policy. Where tangible fixed assets have
been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the
cost of each asset on a straight-line/reducing balance basis over its expected useful lives, as follows:

Site improvements -5-50years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 5 years
ICT equipment - 3 years
Motor vehicles - S5 years

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use.

Assets transferred on conversion to the academy were fully depreciated in the first year's accounts.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Land and buildings occupied under a Church Supplemental Agreement are not recognised as assets in the
balance sheet. Where capital expenditure has been incurred by the academy then the academy trust recognises
a site improvement asset funded by capital grants even when the site is not recognised as land and buildings in
their academy trust's own accounts.

Stocks

Stock consists of stationery. Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. ltems donated for
resale or distribution are not included in the financial statements until they are sold or distributed.

Page 28 continued...



Holy Rood Cafholic Primary School

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories
covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Amounts due to the charity's wholly owned subsidiary
are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.
Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to
charity's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Pension benefits and other post-retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS')
and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period
to which they relate. :

The LGPS is a funded muiti-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of retum on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the
net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the
benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on
the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Holy Rood Catholic Primary School

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions )

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a materia!l adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below:

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 19, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been
used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2020. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the
pension liability. .

Critical areas of judgement

Under the Church Supplementary Agreement between the academy and the Clifton Diocese the academy is
given rent free use of certain land and buildings. The Academy Accounts Direction requires that an appropriate
notional donation of rent is recognised in the financial statements. The rent has been estimated as the equivalent
of the annual depreciation charge on the value of the land and buildings.

DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

2020 2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Donations - 1,710 1,710 4,467
Grants - 8,793 8,793 20,961
Notional donation from Diocese re property
occupied 47,000 - 47,000 47,000
47,000 10,503 57,503 72,428
Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:
2020 2019
£ £
DfE/ESFA capital grants 8,793 20,961
FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
2020 -2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Grants - 1,904,754 1,904,754 1,830,742
School trips and swimming - 1,576 1,576 24,351
School uniform - - - 30
Afterschool club 14,077 - 14,077 22,241
Catering 21,915 - 21,915 36,654

35,992 1,906,330 1,942,322 1,914,018

An analysis of grants-received is given below:

2020 2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA revenue grant '
General Annual Grant{(GAG) - 1,631,113 1,631,113 1,372,572
Other DfE/ESFA Grants - 227,507 227,507 159,459

- 1,868,620 1,858,620 1,532,031
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" Holy Rood Catholic Primary School

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 Auqust 2020

FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS - continued

Other government grant
Other government grants
Special education projects

Other
Other grants

Exceptional government funding
Other Coronavirus funding

2020 2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £

- - - 198,105

- 39,454 39,454 76,135

- 39,454 39,454 274,240

- - - 24,471

- 6,680 6,680 -

- 1,904,754 1,904,754 1,830,742

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support schemes in
response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under 'exceptional government

funding'.

- The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £6,680 of free school meals and additional

cleaning costs. These costs are included in notes 6 and 7 below as appropriate.

OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

2020 2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 675 - 675 1,845
Other income 11,883 - 11,883 12,987
12,558 - 12,558 14,832
INVESTMENT INCOME
2020 2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Deposit account interest 142 - 142 149
EXPENDITURE
2020 2019
Non-pay expenditure
Staff Other
costs Premises costs Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Charitable activities
Academy's educational operations
Direct costs 1,309,334 - 167,879 1,477,213 1,432,268
Allocated support costs 397,349 130,230 219,189 746,768 721,374
1,706,683 130,230 387,068 2,223,981 2,153,642
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Holy Rood Catholic I5rimarv School

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

EXPENDITURE - continued

Net income/(expenditure} is stated after charging/(crediting):

2020 2019
£ £
Auditors' remuneration 7,150 6,895
Auditor's remuneration - other non-audit services 2,435 4,620
Depreciation - owned assets : ) 113,000 115,461
CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
2020 2019
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds - funds funds
£ £ £ £
Direct costs - 1,477,213 1,477,213 1,432,268
Support costs ' 72,388 674,380 746,768 721,374
72,388 2,151,593 2,223,981 2,153,642
2020 2019
Total Total
: £ £
Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 397,349 350,746
Depreciation 75,348 72,506
Premises costs 121,302 122,650
Legal costs - other 302 257
Other support costs 133,954 159,054
Governance costs . 18,513 16,161
Total support costs 746,768 721,374

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

One or more trustees have been paid remuneration or have received other benefits from an employment with the
academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they -
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not in
respect of their role as trustees. The value of trustees' remuneration was as follows:

N Fry (principal and trustee)
Remuneration £70,000 - £75,000 (2019: £65,000 - £70,000)
Employer’s pension contributions £10,000 -£15,000 (2019: £10,000 - £15,000)

R Deighton (staff trustee)
Remuneration £25,000 - £30,000 (2019: £25,000 - £30,000)
Employer's pension contributions £5,000 -£10,000 (2019: £5,000 - £10,000)

H Thomas (staff trustee) - Appointed 26/02/2019

Remuneration £50,000 - £55,000 (2019: £20,000 - £25,000)
Employer's pension contributions £10,000- £15,000 (2019: £0 -£5,000)
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Holy Rood Catholic Primary School

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 Auqust 2020

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS - continued
Trustees' expenses
During the year ended 31 August 2020, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £nil (2019: £522) were

reimbursed to (2019: 4) staff trustees (no expenses were reimbursed to non-staff trustees). Other related party
transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 20.

STAFF COSTS
2020 2019
£ £

Wages and salaries ’ : 1,199,703 1,155,447
Social security costs 93,924 90,805
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 380,945 287,800

1,674,572 1,534,052
Supply teacher costs . 32,111 21,253

1,706,683 1,555,305

The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed by the charitable company
during the year was as follows:

2020 2019

Teachers 16 19
Teaching assistants 21 22
Administration and support 20 19
Management 2 2
59 62

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:
o 2020 2019
- 1

- £60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000

S
1 _1

The full time equivalent number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was:

2020 2019
Number Number
Teachers 16 16
Teaching assistants 16 16
Administration and support : 11 13
Management 2 2
45 47

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 3. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer
national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust
was £171,869 (2019: £154,975).
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Holy Rood Catholic Primary School

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy business. The
insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and

officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the insurance.

COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM
Donations and capital grants

Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's educational
operations

Other trading activities
Investment income

Total

EXPENDITURE ON
Charitable activities
Academy's educational operations

Total

NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
schemes

Net movement in funds

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total funds brought forward

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

Fixed
Unrestricted Restricted asset Total
funds funds fund funds
£ £ £ £
47,167 4,300 20,961 72,428
58,925 1,855,093 - 1,914,018
14,832 - - 14,832
149 - - 149
121,073 1,859,393 20,961 2,001,427
108,306 1,929,875 115,461 2,153,642
108,306 1,929,875 115,461 2,153,642
12,767 (70,482) (94,500) (152,215)
- (21,457) 21,457 -
- (198,000) - (198,000)
12,767 (289,939) (73,043) (350,215)
102,018 (112,041) 408,740 398,717
114,785 (401,980) 335,697 48,502
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TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Furniture
Site and Motor . Computer
improvements  Equipment vehicles equipment Totals
£ £ £ £

COST '
At 1 September 2019 501,574 189,874 900 116,869 809,217
Additions 1,844 750 - 7,049 9,643
At 31 August 2020 ' 503,418 190,624 900 123,918 818,860
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2019 _ . 298,912 105,219 390 103,215 507,736
Charge for year 72,422 30,677 180 9,721 113,000
At 31 August 2020 371,334 135,896 570 112,936 620,736
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2020 132,084 54,728 ~ 330 10,982 198,124
At 31 August 2019 202,662 84,655 510 13,654 301,481

Land and buildings occupied under a Church Supplemental Agreement are not recognised as assets in the
balance sheet. These land and buildings are occupied free of charge under a rolling two year licence.

The Supplementary Agreement includes the right for the Clifton Catholic Diocesan Trustees to give not less than
two years written notice to the academy and Secretary of state for Education to terminate the agreement. No
such written notice has been received as at the date of the approval of the financial statements.

STOCKS
2020 2019
£ £
Uniforms and stationery 2,892 2,892
DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2020 2019
£ £
VAT 10,496 20,105
Prepayments and accrued income ' 136,822 154,333
147,318 174,438
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2020 2019
£ £
Trade creditors 23,596 39,087
Social security and other taxes 22,611 24,512
Other creditors 30,402 27,832
Accruals and deferred income 158,970 151,190
235,579 242,621
- Deferred income
£
Deferred Income at 1 September 2019 42 444
Resources deferred in the year 41,161
Amounts released from previous years (42,444)
Deferred Income at 31 August 2020 . 41,161

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for the 20/21 school year.
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MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
member.

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

2020
Fixed
Unrestricted Restricted asset Total
funds funds fund funds
£ £ £ £
Fixed assets - - 198,124 198,124
Current assets 232,089 177,046 33,366 442,501
Current liabilities (94,000) (141,579) - (235,579)
Pension liability } - (568,000) - (568,000)
138,089 (532,533) 231,490 (162,954)
Comparative information in respect of the preceeding period is as follows:
2019
Fixed
Unrestricted Restricted asset Total
funds funds fund funds
£ £ £ £
Fixed assets - - 301,481 301,481
Current assets 208,785 207,641 34,216 450,642
Current liabilities (94,000) (148,621) - (242,621)
Pension liability - (461,000) - (461,000)
114,785 (401,980) 335,697 48,502
MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Net
movement At
At 1.9.19 in funds 31.8.20
£ £ £
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted fund 114,785 23,304 138,089
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants 58,528 (3,710) 54,818
Capital expenditure from GAG , 1,919 (1,134) 785
Fixed assets donated 1,284 (1,284) , -
Other Capital Grants 101,064 (37,769) 63,295
Fixed assets transferred 172,902 (60,310) 112,592
335,697 (104,207) 231,490
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant 53,220 (46,500) 6,720
Other DfE group grants 2,771 25,976 28,747
Other restricted income 3,029 (3,029) -
Pension (461,000) (107,000) (568,000)
(401,980) (130,553) (532,533)
Total restricted funds (66,283) (234,760) (301,043)
TOTAL FUNDS 48,502 (211,456) (162,954)
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MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted fund

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Fixed assets donated

Other Capital Grants

Fixed assets transferred

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant

Other DfE group grants

Other government grants

Other restricted income

Pension

Other DfE group grant - Pupil premium

Total restricted funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Comparatives for movement in funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted fund

Restricted funds

General Annual Grant

Other DfE group grants

DfE group capital grants
Other restricted income
Pension

Capital expenditure from GAG
Fixed assets donated

Other Capital Grants

Fixed assets transferred
Other DfE group grant - Pupil premium

TOTAL FUNDS

_ Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Movement
resources expended in funds
£ £ £
195,692 (72,388) 23,304
8,793 (12,503) (3,710)
- (1,134) (1,134)
- (1,284) (1,284)
- (37,769) (37,769)
- (60,310) (60,310)
8,793 (113,000) (104,207)
1,631,113 (1,677,613) (46,500)
181,873 (155,897) 25,976
39,454 (39,454) -
3,286 (6,315) (3,029)
- (107,000) (107,000)
52,314 (52,314) -
1 ,908,040 (2,038,593) {130,553)
1,916,833 (2,151,593) (234,760)
2,012,525 (2,223,981) (211,456)
Net Transfers
movement between At
At 1.9.18 in funds funds 31.8.19
£ £ £ £
102,018 12,767 - 114,785
78,788 (25,568) - 53,220
3,032 2,306 (2,567) 2,771
47,075 8,885 2,567 58,527
- 21,919 (18,890) 3,029
(196,000) (265,000) - (461,000)
4,679 (2,760) - 1,919
2,684 (1,400) - 1,284
121,090 (38,915) 18,890 101,065
233,212 (60,310) - 172,902
2,139 (2,139) - -
296,699 (362,982) - (66,283)
398,717 (350,215) - 48,502
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MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement
resources expended losses in funds
£ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted fund 121,073 (108,306) - 12,767
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant 1,372,572 (1,398,140) - (25,568)
Other DfE group grants 106,999 (104,693) - 2,306
DfE group capital grants 20,961 (12,076) - 8,885
Other government grants 274,240 (274,240) - -
Other restricted income 53,122 (31,203) - 21,919
Pension . - (67,000) (198,000) (265,000)
Capital expenditure from GAG - (2,760) - (2,760)
Fixed assets donated - (1,400) - (1,400)
Other Capital Grants - (38,915) - (38,915)
Fixed assets transferred - (60,310) - (60,310)
Other DfE group grant - Pupil premium 52,460 (54,599) - (2,139)
1,880,354 (2,045,336) (198,000) (362,982)

TOTAL FUNDS 2,001,427 (2,153,642) (198,000) (350,215)

General Annual Grant - the GAG is applied in strict accordance with the terms of the Model Funding Agreerhent.
Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of state, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.

Other DfE group grants - these include:
- PE sports grant to fund improvements to the provision of PE and sports for primary pupils
- the rates relief to contribute to the rates bill
- the grant towards the universal free school meals provision
- the grant towards teachers' pay
- the grant towards teachers' pension pay
- the grant towards coronavirus support
Pupil premium - this is a grant from the ESFA used to assist pupils from low income families.

Other government grants - these include the special educational needs funding and trigger funding from Swindon
Borough Council.

Other income - this is the monies received and expended on school trips, funding from Clifton Diocese towards
the site sharing costs that the academy incurs, plus a grant from Tesco for Science projects.

Pension reserve - this deficit represents the net shortfall in funds in the Local Government Pension Scheme in
relation to employees past and present.

DfE group capitat grants - this represents funding specifically provided to support capital expenditure on fixed
assets.

Fixed assets on conversion - this represents the value of land, buildings and other assets transferred from the
Local Authority to the academy on conversion less depreciation.

Fixed assets donated - this represents the value of donated assets less depreciation.
Capital expenditure from GAG - this represents the cost less depreciation of assets purchased from the GAG.
Other capital grants - this represents funding specifically provided to support capital expen‘diture on fixed assets.

Fixed assets transferred - this represents the net book value of fixed assets transferred from Holy Cross Catholic
Primary School. The academy hold the right to use of these assets as they occupy the entire Upham Road site.

No transfers have been made in the year.'
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The academy trust's employees belong to two "principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Wiltshire Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £30,248 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2019: £27,427) and are
included within creditors.

Teachers'’ pension scheme
Introduction .
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the teachers' pension scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was
published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to
the effective date of £218,100 million and notional. assets (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of
£22,000 million

- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPIl. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including
earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £157,619 (2019: £107,520).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy
trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local government pension scheme T
The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pensmn scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £154,000 (2019: £146,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £126,000 (2019: £119,000) and employees’ contributions totailled £27,000
(2019: £27,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 26.4% per cent for employers and 5.5% to
9.9% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of

academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued
The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of unfunded obligations
Deficit

Net liability

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Current service cost

Net interest from net defined benefit
asset/liability

Past service cost

Interest on plan assets

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Contributions by scheme participants
Interest cost

Benefits paid

Remeasurements:

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in
demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in
financial assumptions

Oblig other experience

Page 40

Defined benefit
pension plans

2020 2019
£ £
(1,943,000) (1,668,000)
1,375,000 1,207,000
(568,000) (461,000)
(568,000) (461,000)
(568,000) (461,000)
Defined benefit
pension plans
2020 2019
£ £
224,000 177,000
32,000 36,000
256,000 213,000
23,000 30,000
Defined benefit
pension plans
2020 2019
£ £
1,668,000 1,194,000
224,000 177,000
27,000 26,000
32,000 36,000
(14,000) (9,000)
(16,000) (91,000)
19,000 335,000
3,000 -
1,943,000 1,668,000
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Contributions by employer ’
Contributions by scheme participants
Interest income on plan assets '
Benefits paid

Return on plan assets (excluding interest
income)

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows:

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in
demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in
financial assumptions

Oblig other experience

Return on plan assets (excluding interest
income)

Defined benefit
pension plans

2020 2019
£ £
1,207,000 998,000
126,000 "116,000

27,000 26,000
23,000 30,000
(14,000) (9,000)
6,000 46,000
1,375,000 . 1,207,000

Defined benefit
pension plans

2020 2019
£ £
16,000 91,000
(19,000) (335,000)
(3,000) -
6,000 46,000
- (198,000)

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

Equities

". Bonds

Property
Cash

Defined benefit
pension plans

2020 2019
56% 71%
32% 14%
12% 13%

- 2%
100% 100%

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

Discount rate

Future salary increases
Future pension increases
Inflation assumption (CPI)

2020 2019

1.70% 1.80%
2.60% 2.60%
2.20% 2.30%
2.20% 2.30%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31 August

2020
Current pensioners
Males 21.7 years
Females 24.0 years
Future pensioners*
Males 22.5 years
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At 31 August
2019

21.4 years
23.7 years

223 years
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued
Females ) 25.5 years 25.1 years
* Figures assume members aged 45 as at the last formal valuation date.

The sensitivity regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

Approximate % increase to Approximate monetary
Change in assumption at 31 August 2020 Employer Liability amount (£000)
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 12% 224
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate ' 1% 15
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 11% 206

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have
an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of
the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their
approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures
relating to connected and related party transactions. The following related party transactions took place in the
financial period.

Expenditure Related Party Transactions

L Howcroft, parent of R Deighton, a trustee and member of key management, is employed by the academy trust
as a casual office assistant. L Howcroft is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special
treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

Mrs R Lepore, wife of R Lepore, a trustee, is employed by the academy trust as an admin officer. Mrs R Lepore is
paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no specia! treatment as a result of her relationship to a
trustee.

The academy has a Service Level Agreement with the Clifton Diocese. This Service Level Agreement entitles all
schools to a core service of activities. The cost is related to pupil numbers and totalled £1,704 (2019: £1,460) for
the year. The academy also engages in training and other opportunities with the Diocese which are paid for
separately. A total cost of £167 (2019: £504) was incurred in the year.

Included in support costs is a notional rental cost of £47,000 (2019: £47,000) which related to the use of the
Clifton Diocese fand and buildings occupied by the Academy, and is estimated as the equivalent of the annual
depreciation charge on the value of the land and buildings. As part of the 2 year Church Supplemental
Agreement an accrual for two years of this rent has been included in creditors.

No transactions occurred with any schools who are part of the Samuel Partnership this year.

Holy Cross Catholic Primary School is part of the Samuel Partnership which the Academy is also a member. Holy
Cross Catholic Primary School provided a French Specialist. The cost of this service was £8,672 for 2019.

Holy Family Catholic Primary School is also part of the Samuel Partnership. During 2019, Holy Family Catholic
Primary school organised a school trip for all of the Catholic schools in Swindon. The cost of this trip was
£11,847. The Academy also paid recharges of £191 during 2019.

St Mary's Catholic Primary School, another member of the Samuel Partnership, provided training to the Academy
at a cost of £18 for 2019. :

Income Related Party Transactions

Included in donations is a notional rental donation of £47,000 (2019: £47,000) which related to the use of the
Clifton Diocese land and buildings occupied by the Academy, and is estimated as the equivalent of the annual
depreciation charge on the value of the land and buildings .As part of the 2 year Church Supplemental
Agreement an accrual for two years of this donation has been included in debtors.

During the prior year the Academy received funding of £24,471 from the Clifton Diocese toward the school
expansion. No income was received from the Clifton Diocese this year.

Page 42 continued...



21.

22,

23.

Holy Rood Catholic Primary School

'Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The Academy is under the control of the Bishop of Clifton by virtue of his ability to appoint the majority of the

Board of Trustees.

RECONCILIATION OF NET EXPENDITURE TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2020 2019
£ £

Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the Statement of
Financial Activities) : (211,456) (152,215)
Adjustments for: ' '
Depreciation charges 113,000 115,461
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA (8,793) (20,961)
Interest received (142) (149)
DB pension scheme cost less contribution 98,000 61,000
DB pension scheme finance cost 9,000 6,000
Increase in stocks - (978)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 27,120 (29,908)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (7,042) 47,777
Net cash provided by operations 19,687 26,027
ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

At1.9.19 Cash flow At 31.8.20

£ £ £
Net cash
Cash at bank and in hand 273,312 18,979 292,291
273,312 18,979 292,291

Total 273,312 18,979 292,291
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